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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report
for the year ended 31 August 2019

The Trustees present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditor's report of the
charitable company for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019. The annual report serves the purposes of
hoth a Trustees' report and a directors' report under company law.

The trust operates eight primary academies, and five secondary academies across Birmingham, Staffordshire
and North Warwickshire. lts academies had a total roll of 7,663 in the school census in January 2019,

Structure, governance and management
a, Constitution

The academy is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charty. The charitable company's
memorandum and arficles of association are the primary goveming documents of the academy trust. The
trustees of the Arthur Terry Learning Partnership Trust are also the directors of the charitable company for the
purposes of company law. The charitable company operates as The Arthur Terry Learning Parinership.

Detalls of the Trustees who served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in
the Refersnce and administrative details on page 1.

b. Memhers' liability

Each member of tha charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the chavitable company in the
avent of it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be
a member,

¢. Trustees' Indemnities

The trustees of the trust have been indemnified in respect of their legal liability for financial [oss afising as a
result of a negligent act, accidental error or omission in the course of their official duties. The limit of this
indemnity under the Instirance arrangement of £5 miilion,

d. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees

The Articles provide that

’ The members may appoint by ordinary resolution up to 8 Trustees (Article 50)

. The total number of trustees, including the Chief Executive Officer if they so choose to act as
trustes under Article 57, who are employees of the Acaderny Trust shall not exceed one third of the
total number of trustees (Article 50B)

. In circumstances where trustees have not appointed local governing bodies in respect of the
academies as envisaged in Arficle 109a or if no provision is made for at least 2 parent local
governors on each established local governing body pursuant to Article 101A there shall be a
minimum of two parent trustees and otherwise such number as the members shall decide who shall
be appointed or elected In accordance with Articles 54 — 56. (Article 53)

The ultimate management of the multi academy trust is the responsibility of the Trustees who are appointed and
co-opted under the terms of the Articles of Association,

The approach to appointing new Trustees would depend upon the nature of the vacancy, as outllined in the
Articles. The Trust considers the appropriate skills set of prospective Trustees to enable effective leadership of
Trust responsibilities.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company fimited by guarantee)

Trustsees’ report {continted)
for the year ended 31 August 2018

Structure, governance and management (continued)

e. Policies adopted for the induction and training of Trustees

The tralning and induction provided for new trustees will depend upon their existing experience and an audit of
their skills. Where required, an induction will provide training on educational, safeguarding, legal and financial
matters. All trustees are provided with access to the policies, procedures, governance handbook, minutes,
accounts, budgets plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as trustees and
directors of the Charitable company. As there is normally expected to be only a small number of new trustees
each year, induction tends to be informal and is tailored specifically to the Individual.

The academy insurance indemnifies governors up to £5,000,000. This policy is available for inspection on
reguest.

f. Organisational structure

The company has established a structure to enable its efficient running. The structure consists of seven fevels:-
a) Membets
b) Board of Trustees, Finance Committee & Audit Committee
¢} Two Hub Governing Bodies (Secondary Schools and Primary Schools)
d) Local Governing Body for each of the schools
e) Chief Executive, who is the Accounting Officer for the Trust.
) Executive Team conslisting of Executive Headteacher {Secondary), Executive Headteacher
(Primary), Finance Director, Head of Human Resources and Head of Estates and Operations.
a) Leadership Group for each of the schoals

The trustees are rasponsible for setting strategic policy around pupil and student educational oufcomes, risk
management, five-year business plan, three-year budget plan, monitoring the financial status of the trust, estates
management, growth, senior staff appointments and monitoring the performance of the Chief Executive Officer.

The local governing bodies are responsible for implementing the trust's policies and implementing the pre-
determined schedule of agenda items as detailed by the trustees, to ensure consistency and compliance across
the trust.

The Local Governing Bodies are a mix of parents, staff and co-opted members. At each academy there is a
Headteacher/Associate Headteacher and & Leadership Group,

The audit committee & finance committes are committees of the trust board, with delegated responsibilittes. The
committees assist the trust to fulfil its responsibilities, with particular reference to strategic financial planning,
monitoring and reporting, internal control, risk management, internal and external audit. All other matters are
dealf with by the Trust Board.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {(continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Structure, governance and management (continued)

g. Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management pergonnel

The board of trustees has adopted a pay policy foliowing consultation with members of the executive team and
representatives of recognised unions and professional associations.

The Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), in association with the Executive Headteachers, Is responsible for ensuring
performance objectives for all Headteachers/Associate Headteachers are set and reviews are undertaken in line
with the approved policy. The outcome of the reviews and recommendations are reported to the appropriate Pay
Committee annually.

The remuneration package for the CEQ is determined by the Trust Board, taking in to account all of the
permanent responsibilities of the role, any challenges that are specific to the role, and all other relevant
considerations. The salary is based on a fixed salary. In the case of a new appointment, when determining the
salary, the Trust Board will consider the requirements of the post and the extent to which the preferred candidate
meets those requirements. The Trust Board will ensure that there is appropriate scope to allow for performance-
related progress over time, subject to receiving evidence that there has been substantial and sustained high
quality of performance having regard to the results of the recent appraisal and achieving the overall expectations
and outcomes of the ATLP.

h. Trade union facility time

Relevant union offictals

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the year 8
Full-time equivalent employee number 7

Percentage of time spent on facility time

Percentage of time Number of
employaes

0% -

1%-50% 8

51%-99% -

100% -

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time £000

Total cost of facility time 7

Total pay bill 21,447

Percentage of total pay bill spent on facility time 003 %

Paid trade union activities

Time spent on paid frade union activities as a percentage of total paid {acility time - %

hours
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' repott (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Structure, governance and management (continued)

i. Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

Coton Green Frimary School

Coton Green Primary School has been working alongside The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership for almost one
year and has applied to the Department of Education to join the frust. The partnership currently provides support
to the school across various areas of leadership including teaching and learning, governance, finance and
budgeting, human resources and estates. It is hoped the school will formally join the trust during the
Autumn/Spring term. :

Objectives and activities

a, Objects and aims

The Company's objects are spacifically restricted to the following:

(@)

{b)

Advancing far the public benefit education in the United Kingdom {the area of benefit), in particular
but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing by
() Establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing a school offering a broad

and a balanced curriculum,
(i}  Providing childcare facilities and adult training to develop the capacity and skills of parenis to

be and parents with children primarily but not exclusively under five in such a way that they

are befter able to identify and help meet the needs of children,
Promoting in the area of benefit the physical, intellectual and social development of primarily but not
exclusively children under five especially those who are socially and economically disadvantaged,
Developing the capacity and skills of those inhabitants of the area of benefit who are socially and
economically disadvantaged in such a way that they are better able {0 identify, and help meet, their needs
and to participate more fully in society,
Relieving poverly among the inhabitants of the area of benefit,
Relleving unemployment in the area of benefit for the benefit of the public in such ways as may by thought
fit, including assistance to find employment;
Advancing the health of the inhabitants of the area of beneflt
Providing recreational and leisure time faciiities in the interest of social welfare for the inhabitants of the
area of benefit especially those who have need of such facifities by reason of their youth, age, infirmity or
disablement, poverty or social and economic circumstances,
Ta promote for the benefit of the inhabitants of West Midlands and the surrounding area the provision of
facilities for recreation or other leisure time occupation of individuals who have need of such facilities by
reason of their youth, age, infirmity, or disablement, financial hardship or soclal and economic
circumstances or for the public at farge in the interests of social welfare and with the object of improving
the condition of life of the said inhabitants.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Objectives and activities {continued)

b. Ohjectives, strategies and activities

The five-year business plan describes our objectives, purpose and vision. Our plans focus upon ensuring The
Arthur Terry Learning Partnership remains a centre for academic excellence at all levels across the partnership.
The Arthur Terry Learning Partrership is committed to delivering outstanding provision through collaborative
working, local responsibility and accountability, systematic quality assurance and a commitment to continual
improvement,

Leaders and managers at all levels are encouraged to innovate in response to a continually changing
educational climate and an absolute priority remains to ensure that all children feel safe in an environment where
the discipline is firm buit fair, yet where student voice is heard. Best practice in teaching and learning is widely
shared in order to ensure that all children thrive and succeed and make better than expected progress.

In setting the objectives, the Trustees have given careful consideration to the trust's general guidance on Public
benefit and in particular to its supptementary public benefit guidance on advancing education,

¢. Public benefit

In setting objectives and planning for activities, the Trustees have given due consideration lo general guidance
published by the Charity Commission relating to public benefit, including the guidance 'Public benefit: running a
charity (PB2)".

The main objactives of the trust are summatised below,

. To ensure that every child enjoys the same high-quality education in terms of resourcing, tuition and
care

. To raise the standard of educational achievement of all pupils

. To improve the effectiveness of the trust by keeping the curriculum and organisational structure
under continual review

. To provide value for money for the funds expended fo maintain close links with industry and
commerce, and

. To conduct the trust's business in accordance with the highest standards of integrity, probity and
OpEnness.

To ensure that standards are continually raised the frust, hub governing bodies, the local governing bodies,
executive team and the school leadership teams,

. Operate a robust quality assurance calendar which monitors the quality of teaching and learning
and includes book trawls

. Is visited, scrutinised and supported by a School Improvement Partner

. Undertake a rigorous review of attainment using IDSR and FET live te measure the progress of

students, paying particular regard to their achieverment on entry and levels of progress secured.

The trust recognises that equal opporiunities should be an Integral part of good practice within the workplace.
The trust aims fo establish equal opportunity in all areas of its activities including creating a working environment
in which the contribution and needs of all people are fully valued.

Lifts, ramnps and disabled toilets are installed and door widths are adequate to enable wheelchair access in a
range of areas within the trust. The policy of the trust is to support recruiiment and retention of students and
employses with disabilities. The Trust doss this by adapting the physical environment by making stpport
resources available and through training and career development,
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The Arthur Terry Learning Parthership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued})
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report
Achievements and performance 2018-19
a. Key performance indicators

* Maintaining a balanced budget at year-end
The trustees monitor the financial position on a monthly basis by reviewing financial year-end projections. 2018-
19 secured an in year revenue surplus of £578,000,

* Benchmarking expenditure against other similar organisations

Benchmarking information has bheen reviewed by trustees to make comparative judgements on the efficiency of
each school. Trustees have continued to reduce staffing costs as opportunities arise to reduce the percentage of
income allocated to staffing resources. Extensive work has been undertaken fo drive efficiency across the
partnership, this has included a centralised approach to procurement of large centracts, the provigion of
benchmarking data for governors to challenge school leaders and rationalisation across a range of staffing areas
to achieve consistency.

+ Maintaining current level of reserves
The trust has maintained a similar level of reserves at the end of this accounting period, despite one of the
schools reverting to lagged funding afthough continuing to grow at a rapid rate.

« Achieving value for money through effective financial management procedures

The trust ensures compliance with the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook. Internal controls are
tested by an independent auditor and have verified procedures of financlal management and infernal contral to
achieve value for money.,

« Maintain a positive cash flow with sufficient cash balances to cover monthly expenditure
Montitoring of cash flow throughout the year has secured sufficient cash balances to ensure cash balances to
cover monthiy expenditure.

Key Performance Indicators (2019-20)

Key Performance indicator KPI Target KEt Actuad
Staffing Costs

% spend of total income 75% 75.5%

% spend on Leadership 13% 14%

Pupil Teacher Ratic

Secondary Schopls 17 16.06

Primary Schools 24,2 21

Teacher Contact Ratio

Secondary Schools 0.78 0.74
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report (continued)
Achievements and performance 20118-19 (continued)

b. Geing concern

After making appropriate enquirles, the board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the multi academy
trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements, Further details regarding the
adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the accounting policies,

¢. Primary Schools

Brookvale Primary School

Overall, the results represent another good year of altainment and progress. Breokvale have exceeded their
FFT50 estimates in most areas so early indications of progress are good. Maths results are looking especially
strong with 97% of students maeting the expected standard — 18% above the national average. An area for
development could be greater depth in writing, which is 22% below their FFT50 esfimate.

Curdworth Primary School

The results continue the upwards curve that Curdworth have shown over the past three years. Average scaled
scores are above FFT50 estimates in all subjects; a strong indicator that progress scores will agaln be positive,
A particular highlight is the percentage of students reaching the expected standard in writing — 24%. This is 11%
above their FFT50 estimate and 16% above the national average.

Hill West Primary School

Attainment is again well above the nafional average in all areas. While this could be expected due to the prior
attainment of this cohort, progress is also set to be positive, with most results exceeding FFT50 estimates. One
area of development could be students achieving greater depth in writing and achieving a higher standard in
grammar, punctuation and spelling, which are both slightly below this benchmark.

Mere Green Primary School

Attainment and progress is strong in most measures this year for Mere Green, Maths is a particular highlight,
with all measures well ahave both FFT50 estimates and the national average. The one measure that stands out
as an area for development is the percentage of students achieving greater depth in writing. This is 38% below
their FF'T50 estimate. This wilf inevitably hit their progress score in this subject this year, which is at odds with
their excellent progress scores in this subject over the past three years.

Scotch Orchard Primary School

Scotch Orchard have continued their trend of being in fine with national average progress and attainment for
most measures this year. Maths is the subject that stands out as being well below national averages and FFT50
estimates — only 57% of students reached the expacted standard which is 24% below FFT50.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance 2018-19 (continued)

Slade Primary School

Slade results are mostly in line with their achievement over the past three years. Attainment s below the national
average in most subjects, which is perhaps expected when taking, prior attairment into account. However,
results In wiiting are above, both in terms of students reaching the expected standard and achieving greater
depth. Reading stands out as the main area for improvement when compared to FFT50 estimates, with their
scaled score being 4 points below this benchmark.

Two Gates Primary School

Attainment at Two Gates is below national average. This is in line with their results over the past three years.
Early indications show their progress is also likely to be in line with progress scores achieved cver the past three
years, which is bslow national average. However, past progress scores do rise slightly when looking at their
cantextual value added. While their CVA scores are sfili mostly below national average, this does suggest that
school and student context is an important factor when assessing these restlts,

William MacGregor Primary School

William MacGregor's results have risen steadily over the past three years, going from below the national average
in attainment and progress in 2016 for most measures to above in 2018, Early indications are that results are
perhaps not quite as strong this year, but a small cohort size of 29 students does play a role, whers slight
variation in performance can make a huge difference in figures. It is likely that most measures will not be
statistically different from the national average this year with a cohort of this size. Particular highlights are the
percentage of students reaching the expected standard in reading and writing, while mathematics progress could
take a dip.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report {continued)

Achievements and performance 2018-19 (continued)
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report {(continued)
Achievements and performance 201819 {continued)

d. Secondary Schools

Schools within the ATLP have had clear successes this financial year and have improved performance on a
range of measures and, in particular, in areas that were identified as being vulnerable following EHT and SiP
visits throughout 2018/19. All schools continue to be set targets refating to FFT (at FFT50, FFT20 and FFTS
targets, depending on the school). All schools have in-house aspirational targets for all pupils and disadvantaged
pupils). These are monifored carefully by a range of audiences and at Key Stage 4 there are regular
assessments to ensure greater consistency in the tracking and monitoring of data.

The Arthur Terry School continues to have impressive attainment scores for the headline measures of 4+
English and Maths (79%) and 5+ English and Maths (60%). These figures are expected fo be significantly above
national average, when this figure is released. The attainment of higher prior learners is pleasing at 6.3. This is a
key area for the school, in particular as a result of the larger than average higher prior attainers on entry.
Attainment scores for English, Maths and the EBace element are all significantly above national average. The
progress of disadvantaged learners is stifl an area of focus for the school and this has declined slightly this year,
I one were to take into consideration the 2 pupils who have not been in school, the progress score would equate
to 0.02. Attendance at the Arthur Terry Schoal continues to be a strength with absence and persistent absence
well below the nalional average.

Stockland Green School.continues to build upon its successes, following a very pleasing Ofsted report which
graded the school as ‘Good’ from Requires Improvement’ in 2017. Progress 8 is above national average with
+0.04. The EBacc element was a focus for the schoo! and this has risen from 4.2 to 4.3 this year. Progress in
Maths, English and EBacc were very pleasing with +0.3, +0.2 and +0.4 respectively. Attendance in 2019 is in line
with national average.

The Coleshill School has had some impressive improvements in the key headlines measure of 4+ English and
Maths and 5+ English and Maths, rising from B5% to 78% and 48% to 52% respectively. Attainment overall has
increased from 4.5 to 4.8 and there has been improvement in attainment for English, Maths, EBacc and the open
alemneant, The progress of disadvantaged pupils remains a clear area for the school to improve. 3 ‘outliers’ would
move the progress of these pupils from -0.69 to ~0.4, but this is still below the national figure of disadvantaged
and significantly below the national average for ‘other’ pupils. It is worth noting that DA gap has reduced from
21% in 2017 to 8% in 2019 in English and from 29% in 2017 fo 13% in 2019 in Maths. The school has a very
clear and comprehensive strategy for DA pupils this academic year and this is being monitored and quality
assured by the EHT and SiP. Attendance remains a real strength of the school at 95.8%, which is well above the
national average. FSM pupils’ aftendance is 94.4%, again well ahove the national average. Pergistent absence
remalns well below the national average at 6.93%,

John Willmott School reported improvad attainment overall from 3.7 to 4 and improvements in all of the
alements (English from 4.4 to 4.7, Maths from 3.5 to 4, Open from 3.8 to 3.9 and EBace from 3.2 fo 3.8). it s
pleasing to also notice that the headline measures for 4+ in English and Maths rose from 47% to 57% and &+ in
English and Maths rose from 23% to 30%. Key Stage 5 at JWS showed a significant improvement in both
progress and atiainment with post 16 VA rising from -0.28 to -0.08, the average point score (APS) rising from
21.58 to 27.37 and the numbers of post 16 pupils attaining the threshold grades rising as follows: A*/A from 11 to
14%, A*/B rising from 31 to 48% and A¥/C rising from 53 to 66%. The higher aspirations are clear to see in post
16 in terms of the wark ethic and in the more robust QA of sixth form and of holding leaders to account for post
16 autcomes. The monitoring and tracking of data has become far more rigorous in this area.

The reinspection Ofsted visit for JWS in this academic year resuited in the school moving from Special
Measures to '‘Requires Improvement. The report noted the impressive impact that the ATLP has had on
standards.,

Nether Stowe school reported a slight increase in Key Stage 4 progress outcomes from -0.25 to -0.21, There
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees’ report {continued})
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report (continued)

Achievements and performance 2018-19 (continued)

were improvements in Maths progress (up from -0,17 to -0.02) and the open element (up from -0.0.38 to -0.3).

Post 16 results ware down on last year's, but with 37 leamers in the sixth form, this is statistically insignificant. As
the sixth form grows, this will be a big focus for the schoal. A new head of Sixth form has been appointed from

September 2019 and there is increased confidence in the school.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee}

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report (continued)

Achievemnents and performance 2018-19 {continued)

*Progress figures are estimates only and are subject to change when official provisional figures are released
during the September Checking Exercise.

e. Teaching School

The Trust's School Centre for Initial Teacher Training, based at Arthur Terry School, continues ta provide an
offer that is high quality. In 2018/19, 73% of all trainees completed their training at an ‘outstanding’ level. Of last
year's cohott, 94% of Associate Teachers have gone straight into employment. 26% of those now in employment
are based in ATLP schools with 52% in schools from across our wider teaching school alliance.

The Teaching School continues to provide a wide range of professional development opportunities across the
MAT and also the wider teaching school alliance. The programme is bespoke and demand led to ensure the
needs of all partner schools are met. NLEs, attached to the teaching school, participated in the national school
improvement offer during 2018/19 supporting vulnerabie schools within Birmingham and Walsall.

Financial review
a. Reserves policy

In determining the reserves policy for the trust, the frustees consider long-term forecast income and expenditure
streams, the requirement to cover commitments and investment in estates/capital projects.

Reserves at the end of the period are £67,701,000 however, £62,346,000 are represented by fixed assets and
the Local Government Pension Scheme deficit. Revenue reserves or free reserves are £5,355,000.

The restricted fund reserves will be used to fund current commitments, designated building maintenance
projects as well as expenditure required to implement the Aims and Objectives of the Academy Trust as outlined
in the Business Plan. In addition, trustees plan to maintain a level of reserves to ensure financial sustainability in
the current uncertain financial climate.

£1,778,000 are designated funds ringfenced for committed capital works or specifically ringfenced project
funding.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2018

Strategic repott (continued)
Financial review (continued)

b. Investment policy

The trust does not currently hold any investments.

If the board of trustees wished to make investments to further the trust's charitable aims, it would ensure that
investment risks are properly managed.

When considering an investment, the board will:

. Act within its powers to invest as set out in the articles of assoclation
. Ensura value for money.
. Take advice from professional advisers where appropnate

Ensure that exposure to investment products is tightly controlled so that securlty of funds takes
precedence over revenug maximisation.
. Ensure investment decisions are in the best interests of the MAT.

Prior approval will be sought from the ESFA prior to any investment transactions that are novel, contentious
andfor repercussive, regardless of value,

Most of the frust's income is received from the ESFA in the form of recurrent grants. The trustees ensure
investment in resource appropriate to the aims and objectives of the trust,

c. Principal risks and uncertainties

The Trustees determine areas of principal risk for the trust and regularly review the risk register to ascertain
whether risks are adequately assessed and rated, and procedures for avoiding, transferring, mitigating or
acceptance of risk are appropriate,

Risk management areas cover strategic financial, reputational, legal, compliance and operational continuity.

Ofsted cutcomes

Significant fall in student numbers
Data breach

Litigation and legislative changes
Pension deficit

Failure to meet academic objectives
Detrimental media publicity

Failure of financial controls
Detrimental impact of reduction in funding
Increases to employer costs

Health, safety and safeguarding
Weak governance

Business continuity
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Strategic report {continued)
Financial review (continued)

d. Review

The majority of the trust's income is received from the Department for Education via the Education and Skills
Funding Agency in the form of the General Annual Grant (GAG); the use of which is restricted to particular
purposes, Le. the objects of the Trust, The GAG received during the period covered by this report and the
associated expenditure is shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

Priorities identified in the ATLP Business Plan are as follows:

. Achievement in our academies will build on the previous personal best with year-on-year improved
progress for students of all abilities across the ATLP.

. Recrultment, training and development of all staff will result in delivery of an outstanding provision
to all of our students.

. Leadership & governance across the ATLP wilt be outstanding and succession planning effective in
securing leaders of high calibre across the Learning Partnership

. A sustalnable educational and business plan will be in place that supporis the academies to meet

their core objective of delivering outstanding education for every child.

The combined General Restricted Fund and Unrestricted Fund show an operating surplus, before the actuarial
losses on defined benefit pension schemes, of £577,000. This operating surpius is the result of budget control
procedures, which have been embedded in the trust's daily financial management in accordance with the
Academies Financial Handbook. The trust operates a detailed Finance Policy, linked specifically to the
Academies Financial Handbook to ensure adequate controls and parameters are incorporated. In addition, all
staff members receive a summary of the trust's financial regulations —specifically relevant for afi staff members.

Over the past twelve months the trust has implemented significant financial strategies to Improve key
performance indicators and ong-term financial sustainability, these include:

a review of the Teaching and Learning Responsibility Allowance (TLR) structure
a review of contact ratios for teaching staff

a review of non-contact time for TLR holders

a review of Leadership team structures

a review of general staffing expenditure as a % of total income

» o 4 & 8

The trust has taken appropriate action to reduce expenditure where possible without compromising the
educational outcomes of young people, due to continuing rising costs relating to national pay awards, increasing
empioyer pension contributions and general increases in costs related to managing the academy trust.

The continued success of one of our schools which resulted in rapid growth, has presented a financial challenge
to the trust, During the first three-year period of rapid growth the trust was fortunate fo receive funding based on
‘actual’ student numbers. This allowed the school to fund staffing to fit the size of the school. From September
2018, funding has reverted to lagged’ funding, despite the school continuing to grow rapidly for a further two to
three years.

Page 16




The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Fundraising

The trust does not operate a high level of fundraising activities and is very mindful to avoid unreasonably
intrusive or persistent fundraising approaches. Fundraising in the trust is generally limited to ‘non-uniform’ charity
days where schools request a donation from the parent/carer. The beneficiary of the donations is always made
known to parents in advance of the event; it may be to support a local charity of the students’ cholce or to
financially support a specified event being organised by the school or students. Confributions are not
compulsory. Some of the schools within the frust seek voluntary donations at the beginning of each academic
year to support student activities.

Local charitable trusts sometime make donations to schools through specific targeted bids to local trusts.
Schools have benefitted through a range of successful bids to support extended provision of resources to our
schools.

The academy trust does not use any external fundraisers.
Plans for future periods

Trustees engage with schools in the geographical area with a view to future growth of the partnership. School
improvement and likeminded aims and ohjectives are key for developing relationships with other schools keen to
be involved in the learning partnership.

Trustees engaged with the local governing bodies of a range of local schools during the 2018/19 academic year
building relationships based on likeminded aims and trust. This resulted in William Macgregar Primary School
joining the trust on 1st September 2018, Curdwaorth Primary School and Twa Gates Primary School joining en
18t November 2018 and Nether Stowe Secondary School joining on 1st December 2018. The {rust has been
working alongside John Willmott Schaol as its sponsor and school improvement partner since 2015, Trustees
are pleased to announce that John Willmott School formally transferred to the trust on st July 2018,

The trust is currently working alongside Coton Green Primary School; the aim is that the school will become a
formal member of the partnership in the 2019/20 academic year. The {rust looks forward to building additional
capacity and other opportunities o support schools across all phases, particularly where schools are requiring
support to achieve improvement in student outcomes, The trust has developed a high performing school
leadership ambition team, that has contributed significantly to school Improvement across the trust — and wider
Teaching School Alliance.

The trust has a keen interest to develop a free school and is exploring a range of opportunities to fulfil this
ambition,

The trust will continue striving to improve the levels of performance of its students at all levels and will continue
its efforts to ensure all students are secure in their next steps when leaving school to employment or continuing
in training or formal education.

Funds held as custodian on behalf of others

The trust holds funds on behalf of the Teaching School Gouncil.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Trustees' report {(continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Employee involvement and employment of the disabled

Employees have been consulted on issues of concern to them by means of regular consultative committee and
staff meetings and have been kept informed on specific matters directly by management. The multi academy
trust carries out exit interviews for all staff leaving the organisation and has adopted a procedure of upward
feedback for senior management and the Trustees.

The multi academy trust has implemented a number of detailed policles in relation to all aspects of personnel
matters including:

. Equal opportunities policy
. Volunteers' policy
. Health & safety policy

in accordance with the multi academy trust's squal opportunities policy, the multi academy frust has long-
established fair employment practices in the recruitment, selection, retention and training of disabled staff.

Full details of these policies are available from the multi academy trust's offices.
Disclosure of information to auditor

Insofar as the Trustees are aware:

. there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company's auditor is unaware, and

. that Trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken fo make themselves aware of any
relavant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Auditor

The auditor, Dains LLP, has indicated his willingness to continue in office. The designated Trustees will propose
a motion reappolnting the auditor at & meeting of the Trustees.

£

The Trustees' r ;iort, ingarporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of Trustees, as the
compa?y directdrs, on'd Pécember 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

»

/ i'

: MF John Vickers

i\\?air of T/m'gtees
(
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement

Scope of responsibility

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership has an effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide
only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of Trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive, as accounting officer,
for ensuring financlal controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management
and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between
The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsibie for
reporting to the board of Trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in intemal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees' report and in the
statement of trustees’ responsibilities. The board of Trustees has formally met 6 times during the year,

Attendance during the year at meetings of the board of Trustees was as follows:

Trustee Meetings attended Out of a possible

Mr Timothy Sewell 3
Mr John Vickers, Chair

Mr Johnathan Brake

Miss Heather Morris, Vice Chair

Mr Richard Gill, CEQ & Accounting Officer
Mr Brian Cookson, Chair of Finance

DROHOD
OO

The finance committes is a sub-committee of the main trust board, its purpose is to assist the trust in fulfilling its
responsibilities for strategic financial planning and monitoring.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows:

Trustes Meetings attended Qut of a possible
Mr Richard Gill, CEO & Accounting Officer 1 2
Mr Timothy Sewell 0 2
Mr Johnathan Brake 2 2
Mr Brian Cookson, Chair of Finance 2 2

Teresa Phipps (Finance Director) is in attendance at the Finance Committee.

The audit commities is a sub-committee of the main trust board. its purpose is to assist the trust in fulfiling its
responsibilities for internal control, risk management and external audit; all other matters are dealt with by the
trust board.

Attendance during the year at meetings was as follows;

Trustee Meetings attended Qut of a possible
Mr John Vickers 3 3
Miss Heather Morris 3 3
Mr Dan Mortiboys (not trustee) 3 3

Richard Gill (CEQ & Accounting Officer) and Teresa Phipps (Finance Director) are in altendance at the Audit
Committee,
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued)

Governance {continued)

Governance Reviews

The trust's review of its governance arrangements were formally implemented with effect from 17th July 2017.
The new structure was designed to meet the requirements of the competency framework for governance
enabling implementation of the trust board’s strategy whilst holding school leaders to account. The aim was to
develop governance to the highest level to ensure actions contribute to deliver school improvement and mitigate
risk.

. The revised structure includes a reduced number of members and trustees. All members and trustees are
completely independent from local goverring bodies. The trust has separate committees for governance of the
finance and audit functions. The audit committee reviewed the self-svaluation of performance during the summer
terim. The outcome has identified continued fraining and development sessions for alf trustees and members
with a focus on their roles and respoensibilities around finance, audit, fraud and risk.

Each local governing body meets six times a year; their responsibility is to monitor the approved budget’s income
and expenditure. Each monitoring report details the projected outturn for the year-end.

The Finance Director prepares forecast oufturn data and management accounts which are presented to the
finance committee three times annually. Managemant accounts are presented to the Chair of the Trustees on a
monthly basis, and presented to the board of trustees six times annually. The forecast financial position for each
school is ‘RAG’ rated throughout the financial year. All new approved budgets are also 'RAG’ rated fo ensure
censistency and close monitoring of any potentially vulnerable budgets. The whole process of financial
governance is totally inclusive to enable the appropriate level of challenge.

Review of value for money

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for ensuring that the multi academy trust delivers
good value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal cutcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the academy trust's use of its resources has provided good value for
money during each academic year, and repotts to the board of trustess where value for money can be improved,
including the use of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has
delivared improved value for money during the year by continuing te develop strategies to raise educational
outcomes for its children and young people by extending ifs partnership working, through collaboration by
sharing skills and expertise cross curricular and cross phase (primary and secondary). The Trust has benefited
from extensive continuing professional development ranging from leadership development, coaching, changes to
curriculum, improving student attainment, assessment, hehaviour for learning, performance management and
performance related pay. All of these areas of training have been provided in-house to achieve good value. This
has two-fold value; financial saving and development and investment in our own staff.

The accounting officer has also delivered additionat good value for money by utilising expertise within the trust to
support other trusts requiring support with school improvement.

The trust board and accounting officer have confidence in the quality assurance of financial management and
stringent systems of internal control.  The delegated responsibility of the separate audit and finance committees
allows additional independent monitoring and oversight of internal controls; this has undoubtedly strengthened
the consistency and challenge to local governing bodies, Governors, headteachers and finance staff across the
whole partnership have continued to banefit from in-house training to increase the consistency and quality of
financlal management and strategic long-term budget planning. Governors, trustees and headteachers are
aware of the government's strategy to drive efiiciency and the importance of the financial health of academies.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement {continued)

Review of value for money {continued)

The partnership implemented centralised services in January 2019 to provide expertise within the areas of
operations, estates, finance and human resource management. This will provide additional good value from a
firancial and consistency of delivery approach.

A range of centrally procured services and contracts have successfully been implemented to ensure consistency
of service and additional value for meney,

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of Internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate ali risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identity
and prioritise the risks to the achievement of multi academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the
likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realfised, and to manage them efficiently,
effectively and economically. The system of infernal control has been in place in The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the anntat report
and financial statements.

Gapagity to handle risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the muilti academy trust is exposed together with the
operating, financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of
Trustees is of the view that there Is a formal ongoing process for identifying, evaluating and managing the rmulfi
academy trust's significant risks that has been in place for the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 and up
to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements, This process is regularly reviewed by the
board of Trustees.

The risk and control framework
The multi academy trust's system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management

information and administrative procedures including the segregation of dutles and a system of delegation and
accountability, In particular, it includes:

. comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports
which are reviewed and agreed by the board of Trustees
. regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the

forecasts and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes
setting targets to measure financial and other performance

clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines
delegation of authority and segregation of duties

[dentification and management of risks

. » 9 @

The board of Trustees has considerad the need for a specific internal audit function and has decided not to
appoint an internal auditor. However, the Trusiees have appointed Dains LLP, the external auditor, to perform
additional checks.

The auditor's role includes giving advice on financial matters and performing a range of checks on the trust's
financial systems e.g. purchasing, payroll and reconciliation. The auditor reports to the audit committee on the
operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial responsihilities.

The auditor reports to the audit committee on the operation of the systems of control and on the discharge of the
board of trustees’ financial responsibifities.

The auditor has delivered the schedule of work as planned. There have been no material control issues arising
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Governance Statement (continued}

The risk and control framework (continued)
as a result of the auditor's work.
Review of effectiveness

As accounting officer, the Chief Executive has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of

internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

. the work of the external auditor,

. the work of the executive managers within the multi academy trust who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the internal control framework.

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the syster is in place.
]

Cliair of Trusteas Chief Executive and Accounting Officer

v

E _f::... .. " E
\nyohn Vickers Mr Richard Gill
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance

As accounting officer of The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership 1 have considered my responsibility to notify the
multi academy trust board of Trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material iregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the multi academy trust,
under the funding agreement in place between the multi academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education.
As part of my consideration | have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook
2018.

| confirm that | and the multi academy trust board of Trustees are able to identify any material irregular or
improper use of all funds by the multi academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of
funding under the multi academy trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

] confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding nen-compliance have been discovered
to date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the beard of

\ \ f’; y
MERichard Gill™ -
hief Executive and Acéounting Officer

W/

Date: 9 December 2019
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of Trustees' responsibilities
for the year ended 31 August 2019

The Trustess (who are also the directors of the charitable company for the purposes of company law) are
responsible for preparing the Trustees' report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies
Accounts Direction published by the Education & Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards
{United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the Trustees fo prepare financial stalements for each financial year. Under company law
the Trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the charitable company and of its Incoming resources and application of resources,
including its income and expenditure, for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Trustees are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
observe the methods and principles of the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction
2018 to 2019;

. make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements;

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
charitable company will continue in business.

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain
the charitable company's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any fime the financial position of
the charitable company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act
2005. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the charltable company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the charitable company applies
financial and other controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial
rmanagement. They are also responsible for ensuring grants received from ESFA/DIE have been applied for the
purposes intended.

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information
included on the charitable company's website. Legislation In the United Kingdom governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by orde;/ ofthe members of the board of Trustees on 9 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

e

MrJbhn Vickers
Chair of Trustees
‘{/
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Arthur Terry Learning
Parthership

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership (the 'multi academy trust) for
the year ended 31 August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the
Statement of Cash Flows and the refated notes, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The
financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepled Accounting Practice), including Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financia! Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Charifies
SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency.

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the multi academy trust's affairs as at 31 August 2019 and of its
incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for the year then
ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006, the Charities SORP
2015 and the Academies Accournts Direction 2018 fo 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Funding
Agency.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit
of the financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the multi academy trust in accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the United Kingdom,
including the Financial Reporting Council's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other athical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the 1SAs (UK} require us fo
report to you where:

. the Trustees’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or .
» the Trustees have not disclosed in the financial statemants any identified material uncertainties that may

cast significant doubt about the multl acaderny trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are
authorised for issue.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee}

Independent auditor's Report on the financial statements to the Members of The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership (continued)

Other information

The Trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included
in the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereoh. Other information
includes the Reference and Administrative Details, the Trustees' Report including the Strategic Report, the
Governance Statement, the Statement on Regufarity, Propriety and Compliance, and the Statement of Trustees'
responsibilities. Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibifity is to read the other infermation and, in
daing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a materfal
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required £o report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

. the information given in the Trustees' report including the Strategic report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared s consistent with the financial statements.

. the Trustess' report and the Strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements,

Matters on which we are required o report by exception

In the light of our knowledge and understanding of the multi academy trust and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Trustees' report including the Strategic
report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if, in our opinion: ‘

. adeguate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been
received from branches not visited by us; or

. the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or
. certain disciosures of Trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or
. we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit,

Page 26




The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Independent auditor's Report on the financial staterents fo the Members of The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership {continued})

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the trustees' responsibilities statement, the Trustees (who are also the directors of the
multi academy trust for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial
statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the
Trustees determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or etror.

in preparing the financial statements, the Trustees are responsible for assessing the mutti academy trust's ability
to continus as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the Trustees efther intend to liguidate the multh academy trust or fo cease
operations, or have no reslistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are {o obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repert that includes our
opinion, Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not & guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 1SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or emor and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financiaj statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at: www.frc.org.uld/auditorsresponsibiliies. This description forms part of our
auditor's report,

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the charitable muiti academy trust's members, as a body, in accordence with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to
the charitable multi academy trust's members those matlers we are required fo state to them in an auditor's
raport and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the charltable multt academy trust and its members, as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

i

Andrew Morris FCA (senior statutory auditor)

for and on behalf of
Dains LLP

Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accountants

Birmingham
9 December 2018
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Independent Reporting Accountant’s Assurance Report on Regularity fo The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership and the Education & Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 24 September 2018 and further to the requirements
of the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to
2019, we have carried out an engagement to obtain limited assurance about whether ths expendiure disbursed
and income received by The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August
2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the
authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership and the ESFA in accordance with the terms
of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the {ullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone aother than The Arthur Terry
Learning Partnership and ESFA, for our work, for this report, or for the canclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership's accounting officer and
the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership's funding
agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 1 May 2012 and the Academies Financial Handbook,
extant from 1 September 2018, for ensuring that expenditure dishursed and income received is applied for the
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession's ethical
guidance and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the
requirements of the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, We report to you whather anything has come
to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and
income recelved during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 have not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement In accordance with the Academias Accounts Dirsction 2018 to 2019 issued by
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on
regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and
consequently does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that
might be identified in a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
multi academy trust's income and expenditure,
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership and the Education & Skills Funding Agency {continued)

Conclusion
In the course of our work, nothing has come to our aftention which suggest in all material respects the
expenditure disbursed and income recelved during the year 1 September 2018 to 31 August 2019 has not been

applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which
govern them.

ong 0

Dains LLP

Statutory Auditar
Chartered Accountants

Birmingham

Dats; 9 December 2019

Page 29




The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account}
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total Total
funds funds funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019 2019 2018
Note £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Income from:
Donations and capltal grants: 4
Transfer from local authority on
converston 621 (4,758) 24,586 20,449 2,662
Other donations and capital grants ©294 - 1,264 1,658 1,387
Charitable activities: 5
Funding for the multi academy trust's
educational operations 451 34,6870 - 35121 27,633
Childrens centre 5 71 - 76 150
Teaching schools 34 - 1,943 S 4,943 2,553
Other trading activities 5 763 - - 763 525
Investments 7 7 - - 7 4
Total income 2,141 31,926 25,850 59,917 34,814
Expenditure on:
Charitable activities: ¢
Multi academy trust's educational
operations 1,451 35,108 1,861 38,420 29,669
Childrens centre - 56 - 56 171
Other charitable activitias - (1) - {1) -
Teaching schools 34 " 2,078 - 2,078 1,976
Total expenditure 1,451 37,241 1,881 40,653 31,818
Net i / i
ot Income/(expenditure) 830 (5315) 23,989 19,364 2,998
Transfers between funds 20 (124) (422) 546 - -
Net movement in funds before other
Other recognised gains/{losses):
Actuarial {losses)/gains on defined
benefit pension schemes 28 - {3,855) - {3,855} 2,546
Net movement in funds 566 {9,592) 24,535 15,509 5,544
Reconciliation of funds:
Total funds brought forward 2,078 (8,676} 58,791 §52,193 46,649
Net movement in funds 566 (9,592} 24,535 156,509 5,544
67,702 52,193

Total funds carried forward 20 2,644 {18,268) 83,326
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The Arthur Terry Learning Parthership
(A company limited by guarantee}

Statement of financial activities (incorporating income and expenditure account} (continued)
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Page 31




The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by gtarantee)
Registered number: 07730920

Balance sheet
for the year ended 31 August 2019

2019 2018
Note £000 E£00D
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 16 83,128 58,584
Current assets
Debtors 17 1,101 905
Cash at bank and in hand 6,995 5,991
8,096 6,896
Creditors: amcunts falling due within one
year 18 {2,365) {1,713)
Net current assefs 5,734 5183
Total assets less current labilities 88,859 63,767
Creditors: amounts falling due after more
than one year 19 (177} (199)
Net assets excluding pension liability 88,682 63,568
Defined benefit pension scheme liability 28 {20,980) {11.375)
Total net assets 87,702 52,193
Funds of the multi academy trust
Restricted funds:
Restricted fixed asset funds 20 83,326 58,791
Restricted income funds 20 2,711 2,699
Restricted funds excluding pension liability 20 86,037 61,490
Pension reserve 20 - (20,979) (11,375)
Total restricted funds 20 65,058 60,115
Unrestricted income funds 20 2,644 2,078

Total funds 67,702 52,193

axéments oh pages 30 to 69 were approved hy the Trustees, and authorised for issue on 09
9 and are signed on their behalf, by:
.f' .

The finantial

Decembger 2
~ I

/.
Mr Johlw Vickers
Cpair of Trustees

-

3
3

"“The notes on pages 34 to 69 form part of these financlal statements.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee}

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 August 2018

Cash flows from operating activities

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

The notes on pages 34 to 69 form part of these financial statements

Note

22

24

23

25

2019 2018
£00¢ £000
1,718 880
(712) (254)
73] 210
1,004 826
5,991 5,165
6,995 5,991
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company fimited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2019

1. General information

The Arthur Terry Learning Parinership is a cofnpany limited by guarantse incorporated in England and
Wales. The registered number of the campany is 07730920 and its registered office is Kittoe Road, Sutton
Coldfiled, West Midlands, B74 4RZ, The principal activity of the trust is given in the Trustees Report.

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except
where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, are set out below.

2. Accounting policies

2.1

2.2

A summary of the pringipal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently,
except where noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The financial statements of the multi academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102,
have been prepared under the historic cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard Applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), the Accounting and Reporting by
Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts In
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of lrefand (FRS
102} (Charities SORP (FRS 102)), the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA,
the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2008,

Goling concern

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any
material uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the muli academy trust to continue as a going concern. The Trustees make this assessment in
respact of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial
statements and have concluded that the multi academy trust has adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foresesable future and there are no material uncertainties about the
multi academy trust's abllity to continue as a going concem, thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2019

2. Accounting policies {continued)

2.3 income

All incoming resources are recognised when the multi academy trust has entiiement to the funds, the
receipt is probable and the amount can be measurad reliably.

o Grants

Grants are included in the statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of
income received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant
funds on the balance sheet, Whera ihcome is recelved in advance of meeting any petformance-
related conditions, there is not uncenditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred
and included in creditors as deferred income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where
entitlement occurs before income is received, the income Is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the staterment of Financial Activities in the year for which
it is receivable and any abatemant in respect of the year is deducted from income and recognised as
a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitiement to the grant. Unspent
amounts of capitat grants are reflected in the balance sheet In the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital
grants are recognised when there is entilliement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on
which they are expended.

+ Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided fo the multi academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised
in the statement of Financial Activities In the year in which it Is receivable {where there are no
performance-related conditions) where receipt is probable and it can be measured reliably.

+« Donations

Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance-refated conditions)
where the receipt is probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

« Other income

Other income, including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the year it is receivable and to the extent
the multi academy trust has provided the goods or sefvices.

« Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the
expected costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it Is recognised in ‘Stocks'
and ‘Income from Other Trading Activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against
‘Income from Other Trading Activities' and the proceeds are recognised as ‘Income from Other
Trading Activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the items due to the volume of low value items
they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold, This income Is recognised
within ‘Inceme from Other Trading Activities’.

« Transfer on conversion

Where assets and liabilities are received by the multi academy frust on conversion to an academy,
the transferred assets are measured at fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point
when the risks and rewards of ownership pass o the muifi academy trust. An equal amount of
income is recognised as a {ransfer on conversion within 'Tncome from Donations and Capital Grants'
to the net assets received.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.3

24

2.5

26

income (continued)

Donated fixed assets {excluding transfers on conversion or into the multi academy trust)

Where the donated good is a fixed asset it is measured at fair value, unless it is impractical to
measure this reliably, in which case the cost of the item to the donor should be used. The gain is
recognised as 'Income from Donations and Capital Grants' and a corresponding amount is included
in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance
with the multi academy trust's accounting policies,

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit
to a third party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in seftlement and
the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs
of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support costs
involved in undertaking each activity. Diract costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly
to that activity. Shared costs which contribute to more than one activity and support costs which are
not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on a basis consistent with
the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation
charges allocated on the portion of the asset's use.

Charitable activities

These are costs incurred on the multi academy trust’s educational operations, including support costs
and costs relating to the governance of the multi academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

All resources expended are inclusive of imecoverable VAT,
Interest receivable

interest on funds held on deposit is inciuded when receivable and the amount can be measurad
reliably by the multi academy trust; this is normally upon netification of the interest paid or payable by
the institution with whom the funds are deposited.

Taxation

The multi academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the
Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax
purposes.

Accordingly, the multi academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or
capital gains received within categories covered by Part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act
2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargesble Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such incore or
gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2019

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.7

28

2.9

Tangible fixed assets

Assets costing £1,000 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of
depreciation and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the
government or from the private sector, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated
over their expected useful economic life. Where there are specific conditions attached to the funding
requiring the continued use of the asset, the related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset
fund in the statement of Financial Activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on
the relevant assets is charged directly to the restricted fixed asset fund in the statement of Financial
Activities. Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on
suich assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreclation is provided on all tangible fixed assets other than freehold land and assets under
construction, at rates calculated to write off the cost of each asset on a straight-line basis over its
axpected useful life, as follows:

Depreciation is provided on the foliowing bases:

Longterm leasehold tand - over the life of the lease
Longterm leasehold property - 2% Straight line

Fixiure and fitlings - 10% Straight line
Computer equipment - 30% Straight line

Motor vehicles -~ 25% Straight line

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged
until they are brought into use and reclassified to freehold or leagehold fand and buildings.

A review for impalrment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying
value of fixed assets and thelr recoverable amounis are recognised as impairments, Impairment
losses are recognised in the statement of Financial Activities,

Debtors

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered.
Prepayments are valued at the amount prepaid net of any trade discounts due.

Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and short-term highly liquid investments with a short maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account,

2.10 Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past
event, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount
of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the mult
academy trust anticipates it will pay to setfle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced
payments for the goods or setvices it must provide.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
(A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2018

2. Accounting policies (continued)

2.11 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the mulli academy trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a
result of a past event which it is probable will result in the transfer of economic benefits and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to seitle the obligation. Where
the effect of the time value of money is material, the provision is based on the present value of those
amounts, discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. The
unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges.

2.12 Financial instruments

The multi academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS 102. The financial
assats and financial liabilities of the muiti academy trust and thelr measurement bases are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments
measured at amartised cost as detailed in note 17, Prepayments are nof financial instruments,

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value,

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, aceruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are
measured at amortised cost as detailed in notes 18 and 19. Taxation and social security are not
included in the financial instruments disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a
financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver
services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

213 Qperating leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the statement of Financial Activities on a straight
line basis over the lease term.

2.14 Conversion to an academy trust

The conversion from a state maintained school to a multi academy frust involved the fransfer of
identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £NIL consideration. The
substance of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as sef out below.

The assets and labilittes transferred on conversion from Curdworth Primary School, Two Gales
Primary School, William MacGregor Primary School, John Willmott School and Nether Stowe Schoot
to the multi academy trust have been valued at their fair value. The fair value has been derived based
o that of equivalent items. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate balance shest
categories, with a corresponding amount recognised in Income from Donations and Capital Grants in
the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general funds
and restricted fixed asset funds.

Futther details of the transactions are set out in note 28.
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2019

2. Accounting policies {continued)

2.15 Pensions

Retirement benefits to employees of the multi academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension
Scheme ("TPS") and the Local Government Pension Scheme ("LGPS"). These are defined benefit
schemes.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of
pensions over employees’ working lives with the multi academy trust in such a way that the pension
cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions
are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of guadrennial valuations using a
prospective unit credit method. TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme with no underlying assets
to assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS s treated as a defined contribution scheme for
accounting purposes and the contributions recognised in the period to which they relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the
multi academy trust in separate trustee administered funds, Pension scheme assets are measured at
fair value and Yiabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and
discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially
and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the
current service costs and the costs of scheme introductions, benefit changes, settlements and
curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. Net interest on the net defined
benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of Financial Activities and comprises the
interast cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated
by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to
discount the benefit obligations, The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets
and the actual return on the scheme assets Is recognised in other recognised gains and losses.

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses.
2.16 Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the
charitable objects of the muiti academy {rust at the discretion of the Trustees.

Designated funds comprise unrestricted funds that have been set aside by the Trustees for particular
purposes. The aim and use of each designated fund is set out in the notes to the financial
statements.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes
imposed by the funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Department for Education Group.

Investment income, gains and losses are aliocated to the appropriate fund,
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The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership
{A company limited by guarantee)

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 August 2019

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions:

The mulli academy trust trust makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a
number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The
assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for pensions include the discount rate. Any
changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 28, will impact the carrying amount of the
pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial
valuation performed at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31
August 2019. Any differences between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full
actuarlal valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension fiability.

Critical areas of judgement:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principals
requires the Trustees to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabiiiies at the date of the financiel statements and the
reported amounts of revenuss and expenses during the reporting period. Actual resulls in the future could
ditfer from those astimates. In this regard, the Trustees believe that the critical accounting palicles where
judgements or estimating are necessarily applied are summarised below.

Depreciation and residual values

The Trustess have reviewed the asset lives and associated residual values of all fixed asset classes and
have concluded that asset lives and residual values are appropriate,

Donations and capital grants

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000
Donations 284 - 19 313
Capital Granis - - 1,245 1,245
Transfer from local authority on conversion 621 (4,758) 24 586 20,449
815 {4,758) 25,850 22,007
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Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 E00D
Daonations 421 (274) - 147
Capitai Grants - - 1,240 1,240
Similar incoming resources (287) - 2,929 2662
154 (274) 4,169 4,049
5. Funding for the muit! academy {rust’s educational operatians
Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000
DfE/ESFA grants
General Annuat Grant (GAG) - 30,932 30,932
Pupil premium - 1,525 1,525
Other ESFA income - 603 603
- 33,060 33,060
Other goverment grants
Local authority grants - 890 890
- 8390 890
Other income from the multi acadamy trust's educational
operations
School trip income 451 - A51
School meais income - 121 121
Other income - 589 599
451 34,670 35,121
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Unrestricted  Restricted Total
funds funds funds
2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £00D
DIE/ESFA grants
General Annual Grant (GAG) - 24,312 24,312
Pupil premium - 1,104 1,104
(Other ESFA incoms - 513 513
- 25,929 25,929
Other goverment grants
Local authority grants - 634 634
- 634 634
Other income from the multi acadamy trust's educational
operations .
School trip income 472 - 472
School meals income - it 111
Other income - 387 387
472 27,081 27,533
P—————mrriia
6. Income from other trading activities
Unrestricted  Resftricted Total
funds funds funds
2018 2019 2019
£000 £000 FO00
Letting income 117 - 117
Salary and expenditures recharges 192 - 192
Academy sonsultancy income 257 - 257
(Other income 197 - 197
Children's centre 5 71 76
768 71 839
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Letting income

Salary and expenditures recharges
Academy consultancy income
Other income

Children's cenire

Investment income

Bank interest

Expenditure

Educational operations:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs
Childrens' centre:

Direct costs
Teaching school

Unrestricted  Resfricted Total

funds funds funds

2018 2018 2018

£000 £000 £000

70 - 70

105 - 105

176 - 176

174 - 174

29 121 150

554 121 6875

Unrestricted Total Total

funds funds funds

2019 2019 2018

£000 £000 £000

7 7 4

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2019 2019 2019 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000
24,535 148 4,632 29,315
4,047 4110 948 9,105
AT - 9 b6

298 - 1,780 2,078
28,927 4,258 7,369 40,554
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Educational operations:

Direct costs
Allocated support costs
Childrens' centre:

Direct costs
Teaching school

4.  Analysis of expenditure by activities

Educational cperations
Childrens' cenlre

Educational operations
Childrens' centre

Staff Costs Premises Other Total
2018 2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000 £000

19,438 115 2,860 22,413
2,764 3,392 1,100 7,266
133 - 38 171
324 - 1,852 1,876
22,659 3,507 5,650 31,818
Activities
uhdertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000
' 20,315 9,105 38,420
56 - 56
29,371 9,105 38,475
Activities
undertaken Support Total
directly costs funds
2018 2018 2018
£000 £000 £000
22,413 7,256 29,669
171 - 171
22,684 7,256 28,840
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9. Analysis of expenditure by activities {continued)

Analysis of direct costs

Pension deficit

Staff costs

Educational supplies

Examination fees

Staff development and recruitment
School fund and trips costs
insurance

Agency staff

Analysis of support costs

otaff costs

Depreciation

Maintenance of premises and equipment
Rent and rates

Heat and light

Travel

Catering

Technotogy costs

Office expenses

Governance

Total Total
funds funds
2019 2018 .
E0GO £000
351 328
24,478 18,991
2,61 1,617
359 313
136 142
578 500
148 115
720 580
293711 22,584
Total Total
funds funds
2019 2018
£000 £000
3,497 2,764
1,594 1,373
1,966 1,633
290 245
589 4356
57 58
576 328
208 162
305 231
33 27
9,105 7,256
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10.

it.

12.

Net income/(expenditure)

Nat incomef{expenditure) for the year includes:

Operating lease rentails
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets

Auditor's remuneration

Fees payable to the multi academy trust's Auditor for the audit of the multi
academy trust's annual accounts

Fees payable to the multi academy trust’s auditor in respect of:
Other services

Staff

a. Staff costs

Staff costs during the year were as follows:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Agency staff costs
Staff restructuring costs

2019 2018
£000 £000
123 35
1,753 1,373
2019 2018
£000 £000
33 26

4 4
2019 2018
£000 £000
21,447 16,727
2,125 1,673
4,699 3,651
28,271 22,051
720 580
26 28
29,017 22,659
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12,  Staff (continued)
a. Staff costs (continued)

Staff restructuring costs comprise:

Redundancy payments
Severance payments

h. Non-statutory/non-contractual staff severance payments

2019 2018
E00¢ £000
- 12
26 16
26 28

Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statufory/non-contractual severance payment totalling

£26,345 (2018 - £15,500). Individually, the payments were: £5,000, £7,6841, £12,304 and £1,400).

c. Staff numbers

The average number of persans employed by the multi academy trust duting the year was as follows:

Teachers
Non-teaching staff
Management

2019 2018
No. No.
358 308
470 374

75 55
903 737
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12.  Staff (continued)

d. Higher paid staff

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) excesded

£60,000 was:

In the band £60,001 - £70,000
In the band £70,001 - £80,000
In the band £80,001 ~ £80,000
It the band £400,001 - £110,000
Iy the band £110,001 - £120,000
In the hand £120,001 - £130,000

e, Key management personnel

2019
No.

16
6

[}

2018
No.

e ¥ I - < o

The key management personnel of the academy trust comparise the trustees and the Executive team as
listed on page 1. The total amount of employee henefits (including employer pensicn cordributions and
employer national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel for their services to

the academy trust was £707,756 (2018 - £652,885).
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43, Central services

The multi academy trust has provided the following central services to its academies during the year.

Human rescurces
Educational services
Financial services
Operations

Legal and Governance
Others as arising

# * & 8 & B

The multi academy trust charges for these services on the following basis:
Flat percentage of General Annual Grant (4.5%).

The actual amounis charged during the year were as follows:

Arthur Terry School

Stockland Green School

Slade Primary School
Brookvale Primary School

Hill West Primary School

Mere Green Primary School
The Coleshill School

Scotch Orchard Primary School
Two Gates Primary School
Curdworth Primary School
William MacGregor Primary School
Nether Stowe School

Total

2019 2018
£000 £000
359 381

202 200
88 83
43 43
72 72
82 88

231 224
32 18
45 -
18 -
37 -

107 -

1,326 1,077
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14.

16.

Related party transaction - Trustees' remuneration and expenses

One or more Trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment
with the multi academy trust. The Chief Executive only receive remuneration in respect of services he
provide undertaking the roles of Chief Executive under his contracts of employment. The value of
Trustees' remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000

Mr Richard Gill, CEO & Accounting Officer Remuneration 125 - 430 118-120
Pension contributions paid 20 -26 20-25

During the year ended 31 August 2018, travel and subsistence expenses totalling £NIL were reimbursed
or paid directly to Trustees (2018 - £1,812 to 1 Trustes).

Trustees' and Officers' insurance

In accordance with narmal commercial practice, the multi academy trust has purchased insurance to
protect Trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst
on academy business. The insurance provides cover up to £5,000,000 on any cne claim and the ¢ost for
the year ended 31 August 2019 was £1,445 (2018 - £892). The cost of this insurance is included in the
total insurance cost.
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16, Tangible fixed assefs

Long-term
leasehold Fixture Assets
land and and Computer Motor under
buildings fittings equipment vehicles construction Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost or valuation
At 1 September 2018 63,075 1,149 1,062 .35 75 65,396
Additions 32 5638 354 - 597 1,551
Transfers on conversion 24,586 - - - - 24,586
Transfers hetween classes 672 - - - {672) -
At 31 August 2019 88,365 1,717 1416 35 - 91,633
Depreciation
At 1 September 2018 5,709 326 750 27 - 6,812
Charge for the year 1,275 126 191 2 - 1,594
At 31 August 2018 6,984 452 941 29 - 8,406
Net hook value
At 31 August 2019 81,381 1,265 475 6 - 83,127
At 31 August 2018 67,366 823 312 8 75 58,584
17. Debtors
2019 2018
£000 £000
Due within one year
Trade debtors 103 73
VAT recoverable 188 230
Prepayments and accrued income 810 602
1,101 905
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18. Creditors: Amounts faliing due within one year

Other loans

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
Other creditors

Accruals and deferred income

Defetred income at 1 September 2018
Resources deferred during the year
Amounts released from previous periods

2019 2018
£000 £000
70 50
60 27
520 403
462 338
1,253 895
2,365 1713
2019 2018
£000 £000
359 1,008
851 359
(359) (1,008)
851 350

At the balance sheet date the multi-acadermy trust was holding funds received in advance for educational

grants and frips booked for the autumn term 20189,

Other loans is made up of interest free "Salix" loans from the ESFA and loans with focal authorities which
were inherited with schoals converting info the trust. These loans are repayable in either quarterly or half

yearly instailments unfil 2024,
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19. Creditors: Amounts falling due after more than one year

2018 2018
£000 £000
Other joans 177 199

The aggregate amount of liabilities payable or repayable wholly or in part more than five years after the
reporting date is:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Payable or repayable by instalments 12 23
12 23

Other loans is made up of interest free "Salix” loans from the ESFA and loans with local authorities which
were inherited with schools converting into the trust. These loans are repayable in either quarterly or half
yearly installments until 2024,
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20.

Statement of funds

Unrestricted funds

Designated funds
Pesignated Fund

General funds

General Funds
Children's Centre

Total Unrestricted funds

Restricted general funds
‘General Annual Grant (GAG)

Childret's Centre

Other DIE / EFSA grants
Other government grants

Teaching schools
Other income
Pension resetve

Restricted fixed asset funds

School Condition Allocation

(SCA)

Other Fixed Asset funds

Total Restricted funds

Total funds

Balance at 1 Balance at
September Transfers  Gains/ 31 August
2018 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 20192
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
1,802 - " (124) - 1,778
176 2,136 {1,451) 5 - 866
- B - {5) - -
176 2,441 {1,451) - - 866
2,078 2,141 {1,461) {124) - 2,644
1,977 30,932 (30,422} (422) - 2,065
- 71 {586) - - 15
- 2128 {2,128) - - -
- 890 {890} - - -
722 1,943 {2,078) - - 587
- 721 (677) - - 44
{11,378) (4,758) (s91) - {3,855}  (20,979)
(8,876) 31,927 {37,242) {422) (3,855) {18,268}
456 748 - {791) - 413
58,335 25,102 {1,861) 4,337 - 82,213
58,791 25,850 (1,861) 546 - 83,326
80,118 57,777 (39,103} 124  (3,855) 665,058
52,193 59,918 (40,554) - (3,855) 67,702
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20. Statement of funds (continued)
The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Designated funds
This fund represents funds which the Trustees have earmarked for future projects.

Restricted general funds

This fund represents grants and other income received for the multi academy trust's operational activities
and development.

Pension reserve

The pension reserve included within restricted general funds represents the muiti academy trust's share of
the pension liability arising on the LGPS pension fund.

Restricted fixed asset funds
This fund represents grants and other income received to carry out works of a capital nature.

Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the multi academy trust was not subject to a
limit on the amount of GAG it could carry forward at 31 August 2019,

Total funds analysis by academy

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 were allocated as follows:

2019 2018
£000 £000
Arthur Terry Learning Parinership 1,518 1,208
Arthur Terry School 483 704
Stockland Green School 863 1,460
Slade Primary School 361 M
Brookvale Primary Schoal 163 84
Hill West Primary School 60 113
Mere Green School 718 581
The Coleshill School 175 269
Scotch Orghard School 99 47
Nether Stowe School 295 -
Curdworth Primary School 45 -
Two Gates Primary School 245 -
William MacGregor Primary School 30 -
John Willmatt School 300 -
Totat before fixed asset funds and pension reserve 5,355 4,777
Restricted fixed asset fund 83,326 58,791
Pension reserve (20,979) (11,375)
Total 67,702 52,193
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20. Statement of funds {continued)
Total cost analysis by academy

Expenditure incurred by each academy during the year was as follows:

Teaching
and
educational Other Other costs
support support Educational excluding Total
staff costs  staff costs supplies depreciation 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Arthur Terry Learning

Partnership 730 533 849 174 2,286
Arthur Terry School 6,423 847 750 2,986 11,006
Stockland Green Schaool 3,147 333 469 1,134 5,083
Slade Primary School 1,408 236 376 343 2,364
Brookvale Primary School 655 152 76 158 1,041
Hill West Primary School 1,248 168 226 370 2,002
Mere Green School 1,407 232 284 333 2,256
The Coleshill School 3,868 674 768 547 5,858
Scotch Orchard School 584 68 72 175 899
Nether Stowe School 1,830 222 319 412 2,883
Curdworth Primary School 319 27 90 75 511
Two Gates Primary School 838 g7 116 166 1,217

William MacGregor Primary
School 874 90 133 151 1,048
John Willmott School 603 126 130 97 854
Multi academy trust 23,835 3,785 4,659 7,121 39,410
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20.

Statement of funds {continued)

Comparative information in respect of the preceding year is as follows:

Unrestricted funds

Pesignated funds

Designated Fund

General funds

General Funds
Children's Cenfre

Total Unrestricted funds

Restricted general funds

General Annual Grant (GAG)
Children's Centre

Other DIE / EFSA grants
Other government grants
Teaching schools

Other income

Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset
funds

Schaool Condition Allocation
Other Fixed Asset funds

Total Restricted funds

Balance at Balance at
1 September Transfers  Gains/ 31 August
2017 Income Expenditure infout (Losses) 2018
£000 £Q00 £000 £000 £000 £000
650 - - 1,252 - 1,902
1,199 1,155 (924) {1,264} - 176
- 29 - (29) - -
1199 1,184 (924) {1,283 - 176
1,849 1,184 {924) {31) - 2,078
1,411 24,310 (23,663) 81) - 1,977
19 121 (71 31 . -
- 1,618 {1,618) - - -
- 634 {634 - - -
143 2,555 (1.976) - - 722
- 497 {497} - - -
{12,708) (274) (938) - 2,546 {11,375)
{11,136) 29,481 {29,497) (50 2,546 {8,676)
- 1,062 - {606) - 456
55,936 3,107 (1,395) 687 - 58,335
55,836 4,169 {1,398) 81 - 88,791
44 800 33,630 {30,892} 31 2,546 50,115
46,649 34,814 - 2,546 52,193

Total funds

(31,816)
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24.  Analysis of net assets hetween funds

Analysis of net assets between funds - current year

Resfricted

Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2019 2019 2019 2019

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assels - - 83,128 83,128
Current assets 2,644 4,626 826 8,086
Craditors due within one year - (1,901) {464) (2,365}
Creditors due in mote than one year - (13) {164) (177)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - {20,980) - {20,980)
Total 2,644 (18,268) 83,326 67,702

Analysis of net assets between funds - prior year
Restricted

Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total

funds funds funds funds

2018 2018 2018 2018

£000 £000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets - - 58,684 58,584
Current assets 2,078 4,303 515 6,898
Creditors due within one year - (1,602) {109) {1,711}
Creditors due In more than one year - - {199) (198)
Provisions for liabilities and charges - (11,375) “ {11,375)
Total 2,078 (8,674 58,791 52,195
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22,

23.

24,

Reconciliation of net income to net cash flow from operating activities

Net income for the year (as per statement of Financial Activities)

Adjustments for:

Depreciation

Interest receivable

increase in debtors

Increasef/{decrease) in creditors

Capital grants from DfE and other capital income
Adijust for: cash transferred on conversion

Defined benefit pension scheme cost less contributions payable
Net gain on assets and liabilities from Jocal authority on conversion

Gitt of property on conversion
Defined benefit pension acheme on conversian

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Cash inflows from new borrowing
Repayments of borrowing

Net cash {used in)/provided by financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Dividends, Interest and rents from investments
Purchase of tangible fixed asseis
Capital grants from DIE Group

Met cash used in investing activities

2019 2018
£000 £000
19,364 2,998
1,594 1,373
(N (4}
(196) (328)
631 (653)
(832) (784)
621 Q)
992 938
(621) 274
(24,586) (2,929)
4,758 .

1,718 880
2019 2018
£000 £000
48 226
(50} {16)

(2) 210
2019 2018
£000 £000
7 4
{1,551) (1.052)
832 784
(712) (264)
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26. Analysis of cash and cash equivalents

2019 20186
£000 £000
Gash in hand 6,995 5,991
Total cash and cash equivalents 6,995 5,991

26. Conversion to an academy trust

On 1 November 2018 Curdworth Primary Schoaol converted to academy trust status under the Academies
Act 2010 and alf the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Arthur Terry Learning

Partnership from North Warwickhire Borough Council for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as & net gain in the statement of
Financial Activities as Income from Donstions and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on

conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an

analysis of their recognition in the statement of Financial Activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold land and buildings - 1,887 1,887
Current assets
Budget surplus on LA funds 84 - 84
Net assets 84 1,887 1,971
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26,

Conversion to an academy trust {continued)

On 1 September 2018 William MacGregor Primary School converted to academy trust status under the
Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and llabilities were transferred to The Arthur Terry
Learning Partnership from Staffordshire Gounty Coungil for ENIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at thelr falr value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the statement of
Financial Activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on
conversion,

The following table sets out the fair, values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of Financial Activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000

Tangible fixed assets

Leasehold {and and huildings - 2,342 2,342
Current assets

Budget surplus on LA funds 4 - 4

Net assets 4 2,342 2,346

On 1 December 2018 Nather Stowe School converted to academy trust status under the Academies Act
2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were fransferred to The Arthur Terry Learning
Partnership from Staffordshire County Coungil for ENIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount racognised as a net gain in the statement of
Financial Activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on
conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the idenfifiable assets and liabilfitles fransferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of Financial Activities.

Unrestricted Total
funds funds
£000 £000
Current assets
Budget surplus on LA funds 416 415
Net assets A1h 415
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26. Conversion to an academy trust (continued)

As part of the planned expansion of Nether Stowe Schodi, the local authority is building new facilities at
the school, Due to this building project, a formal lease agreement has not yet baen signed batween the
Local Authority and ATLP, instead a Tenancy at Will has been signed between both parties, with a view
that a 125 year jease will be sighed up on completion of the building work. Once the lease agreement is
signed, the trust will recognise the value of the leasehold fand and buildings on the balance shest of
ATLP. :

On 1 December 2018 Two Gates Primary School converted to academy trust status under the
Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Arthur Terry
Learning Partnership from Staffordshire County Council for £NIL consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The assets and
labilitiss transferred were valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the statement of
Financial Activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on
conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and lisbilities transferred and an
analysis of their recognition in the statement of Financial Activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted  Restricted fixed asset Total
funds funds funds funds
£000 £600 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold fand and buildings - - 4,427 4,427
Current asseis
Budget surplus on LA funds 114 - - 114
LGPS pension deficlt - {318) - {318)
Net assets/{liabilities) 114 {318) 4,427 4,223
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26. Conversion to an academy trust {continued)

On 1 July 2019 John Wilimott School convarted to academy trust stafus under the Academies Act 2010
and all the operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Arthur Terry Learning Partnership

from Birmingham City Council for ENIL consideration,

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a git. The assets and
liabilities transferred were valued af their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the
appropriate heading with a corresponding net amount recognised as a net gain in the statement of
Financial Activities as Income from Donations and Capital Grants - transfer from local authority on

conversion.

The following table sets out the fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an

analysis of their recognition in the statement of Financial Activities.

Restricted
Unrestricted  fixed asset Total
funds funds funds
£000 £000 £000
Tangible fixed assels
Leasehold land and buildings - 15,830 15,930
Current assefs
Budget surplus on LA funds 5 - 5
Net assets 5 15,930 15,938
27. Capital commitments
2019 2018
£000 £000
Contracted for but not provided in these financial statements
Acquisition of tangible fixed assefs - 367
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28.

Pension commitments

The multt academy trust's employees beleng to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension
Scheme for England and Wales (TPS} for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension
Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed hy West Midiands Pansion Fund, Staffordshire
County Council and Warwickshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes,

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related {o the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31
March 20186,

Contributions amounting to £457,000 were payable fo the schemes at 31 August 2019 (2018 - £338,000)
and ars included within creditors,

Teachers' Pension Scheme
Infroduction

The Teachers' Pansion Scheme (TPS or scheme) is a statutory, unfunded, defined banefit occupationst
scheme, governad by the Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended), and the Teachers’
Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 (as amended). These regulations apply to feachers in schools and
other educationa] establishments, including academies, in England and Wales that are maintained by local
authorities. |n addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and
lecturers in some establishments of further and higher education may be eligible for membership.
Membership is automatic for full-time teachers and lecturers and, from 1 January 2007, automatic too for
teachers and lecturers in part-time empioyment following appointment or a change of contract. Teachers
and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS,

The Teachers’ Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account

Although members may be employed by varivus bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits are
set out in regulations made under the Superannuation Act (1972) and Public Service Pensions Act (2013)
and are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members
contribute on a 'pay as you go ‘basis - contributions from members, along with those made by employers,
are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Acts,

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annual account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting
and Valuation Account, to be kept of receipis and expenditure {including the cost of pension increases),
From 1 April 2001, the Account has been credited with a real rate of return, which is equivalent to
assuming that the balance in the Account is invested in notional investments that produce that real rate of
return.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The [atest valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme has now taken place, in line with directions issued
by HM Treasury and using membership data as at 31 March 2016, As a result of this valuation TPS
employers will pay an increased contribution rate of 23.68% from September 2019 (this includes the
administration levy of 0.8%). The timing of the implementation is to align its introduction with employers’
budget planning cycles. Unfil then, employers will pay the current rate of 16,48%.

Scheme Changes
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28,

Pension commitments (continued)

The arrangements for a reformed Teachers’ Pension Scheme, in fine with the recommendations made by
Lord Hutton, in particular the introduction of a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme, were
irmiplemented from 1 April 2015.

In December 2018, the Court of Appeal held that transitional protection provisions contsined in the
reformed judicial and firefighter pension schemes, introduced as part of public service pension reforms in
2015, gave rise to direct age discrimination and were therefore unlawful. The Supreme Court, in a
decision made in June 2019, have rejectod the Government's application for permission to appeat the
Court of Appeal's ruling. The case will now be referred to an Employment Tribunal for a decision regarding
the remedy which will need fo be offered to those members of the two schemes who were subject of the
age discrimination,

HM Treasury are clear that the ruling has implications for the other public service schemes, including the
Teachers' Pension Scheme. Those implications are currently being considered and any impact on
scheme costs is expected {0 be looked af within the next scheme valuation, which is currently scheduled
to be based on April 2020 data and implemented in April 2023,

The employer's pension costs paid to TPS in the year amounted to £2,551,000 (2018 - £1,851,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers' Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The
multi academy trust has accounted for its contributions to tha scheme as if it were a defined confribution
scheme. The multi academy trust has set out above the information available on the scheme,

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined bensfit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-
administered funds, The total confribution mads for the year ended 31 August 2019 was £1,790,000 (20718
- £1,431,000), of which employer's contributions totalled £1,457,000 (2018 - £1,159,000) and employees'
contributions totalled £ 333,000 (2078 - £272,000). The agreed contribution rates for future years are 18.3
per cent for employers and 5.5 to 11.4 per cent for employees.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, fo a guarantee that, in the
event of academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the
Department for Education. The guarantee came into force on 18 July 2013,

Principal actuarial assumptions

2018 2018

%o %

Rate of increase in salaries 3.058 3.13
Rate of increase for pensions in payment/finflation 2.28 2.30
Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.89 2758
Inflation assumption {CPI) 2.28 2.30

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.
The assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:!
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28. Pension commitments (continued)
2019 2018
Years Years
Retiring today
Males . 21.2 22.2
Females 23.5 24,5
Reliring in 20 years
© Males 22.4 24,2
Females 25.0 26,6
Sensitivity analysis
2019 2018
£000 £000
Discount rate +0,1% (955) (1.738)
Discount rate -0.1% 970 1,748
Montality assumption - 1 year increase 155 342
Mortality assumption - 1 year decrease (154) (342)
CP1 rate +0.,1% 805 1,388
CPl rate -0.1% (791) {13,755)
The multi academy trust's share of the assets in the scheme was:
At 31 At 31
August 2018 August 2018
£000 £000
Equities 11,201 8,425
Gilts 2,650 1,402
Corporate bonds 450 379
Property 1,611 1,186
Cash and cther liquid assets 522 475 1
Derivatives 1,764 1,428 |
Total market value of assefs 18,198 13,285

The actual return on scheme assets was £891,000 (2018 - £233,000;.
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28. Pension commitments (continued)

The amounts recognised in the Statement of financial activities are as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000
Current service cost (2,016) (1,771)
Past service cost (82} -
Interest income 428 317
interest cost (774) (643)
Administrative expenses (5) G
Total amount recognised in the Statement of financial activities {2,449) (2,101)
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obiigations were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000
At 1 September 24,671 24,237
Conversion of academy trusts 7,003 534
Current service costs 2,016 17714
Interest cost 774 639
Employee contributions 333 272
Actuarial losses/(gains) 4,542 {2,620)
Benefits paid {243) {162)
Past service costs 82 -

At 31 August 39,178 24,671

Changes in the fair value of the multi academy trust's share of scheme assets were as follows:

2019 2018

£000 £000
At 1 September 13,296 11,528
Conversion of academy trusts 2,245 260
Interest incorne 428 317
Actuarial gains/(losses) 687 (74)
Employer contributions 1,457 1,159
Employes contributions 333 272
Benefits paid (243) (162)
Administrative expenses {5 (4)

At 31 August 18,198 13,296
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29,  Operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2018 the multi academy trust had commitments fo make future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases as follows;

2019 2018
£000 £000

Land and buildings
Not later than 1 year 880 961
Later than 1 year and not later than & vears 4,167 4,206
Later than 5 years 16,948 20,061
22,095 25,228

The commitment under land and buildings represents the total amount payable under the BSF / PFI
contracts that the multi-academy trust is subject to.

2019 2018
£000 £000
Other
Not later than 1 year 49 123
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 143 77

192 200

30. Members' liability
Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the
avent of it being wound up while he/she is a metmber, or within one year afier he/she ceases to be a
member, such amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted
before hefshe ceases to be a member.

31. Related party transactions

No related party transactions fook place in the period of account, other than certain trustees’
remuneration and expenses already disclosed in note 14.

32. Agency arrangements

The trust distributes 16-19 bursary funds from the ESFA to students as an agent. In the accounting year
ended 31 August 2018, the trust received and distributed £53,000 (2018: £45,000).

At the balance sheet date there was no balance owing to specific pupils (2018: £nil).
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33.

34,

Controlling party

The multi academy tiust is controlled by the Board of Members.

Teaching school trading account

Income
Direct income

Grant income
Other income

Fundraising and other income
Total income

Expendifure
Direct expenditure

Direct staff costs
Staff development
Other direct costs

Totat direct expenditure
Other expenditure

Other staff costs
Recruitrent and support
Other support costs

Total other expenditure
Total expenditure

{Deficitysurplus from all sources
Teaching school balances at 1 September 2018

Teaching school balances at 31 August 2019

2012
£000

1,465

488

298

1,762

2,062

24

26

2019
£000

1,943

2,078

{135)
722

587

2018 2018
£000 £000
2,054
501
2,555
296
4
1,603
1,903
27
3
43
73
1,976
579
143
727
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